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Medicare and Medicaid so that we can
deal with the increasing costs but con-
tinue to cover people and continue to
give people, lift people out of poverty,
as we have done, contrasted with this
bridge to the past that we have talked
about where we do not want to go back
to the days when, before the GI bill,
when there were not opportunities for
middle-class families to send their chil-
dren or themselves to college.

We do not want to go back prior to
the 1930’s, when there was not a Social
Security Program. We do not want to
go back to the period before 1965, when
there was not Medicare or Medicaid,
when 50 percent, 54 percent, I guess, of
senior citizens in this country had no
health insurance prior to the mid-
1960’s, and now only 1 percent has no
health insurance. There is no reason to
go back. That is why we need to look
forward.

I think the commitment, certainly
from all four of us and many others
here, is to continue to improve Medi-
care, continue to improve Medicaid,
continue to improve the direct loan
program, student loans overall, student
grants, to take care of the elderly and
to protect our natural resources by
good environmental protection meas-
ures and to continue to give students
opportunities, middle-class families,
poor kids, give them opportunities that
they can produce and they can give
back to society.

I think that is what we are asking,
and it is a rejection of these tax breaks
for the rich to make all of these cuts in
programs that matter, Medicare, stu-
dent loans, environment, but instead to
make these programs more efficient,
make them work, bridge to the future
so that students will have that oppor-
tunity so all of us can grow together.

I thank my friends from New Jersey,
Michigan, and Connecticut.
f

WHITE HOUSE TASK LIST

The SPEAKER pro tempore (Mr.
ROTH). Under the Speaker’s announced
policy of May 12, 1995, the gentleman
from California [Mr. COX] is recognized
for 60 minutes as the designee of the
majority leader.

Mr. COX of California. Mr. Speaker, I
rise this afternoon to talk about a doc-
ument that was recently provided, very
belatedly, by the White House to the
Congress, a document now referred to
as the task list. It is dated December
13, 1994, but it was just provided to the
Congress in recent days. The task list
shows 39 scandals that the White House
staff in the West Wing, taxpayer sup-
ported staff, decided that they needed
to work on because there was now
going to be a Republican Congress.
This memo was prepared just after the
November 1994 elections.

I would like to read just briefly the
scandals that the White House decided
that it needed to task its own staff to
work on. Some of these scandals are, of
course, well known to the American
people, but other scandals have only

recently become known, even though
this memo was written on December 13,
1994.

No. 1, Foster document handling. We
will return shortly to the specifics con-
tained in this memo on each of these.
There are several admissions of illegal-
ity in this very memo.

Travel Office. We know all about
Travelgate, of course. That has become
a major scandal just as they predicted
in here.

White House-Treasury contacts. Of
course, we know about the illegal con-
tacts between senior political ap-
pointees at the Department of the
Treasury and the White House, tipping
off the President, giving a heads up to
the President and Mrs. Clinton about
the criminal referral of the Whitewater
matter.

Obstruction of justice, I am reading
this from the White House internal
memo, obstruction of justice re DOJ
handling of criminal referrals. Use of
White House resources for response ef-
forts. Of course, that is what this
memo is all about, but that is one of
the scandals that is listed here. This
entire memo is devoted to how to spin
the press about the various scandals.

Foster suicide. Espy. Of course we
know that Mr. Smaltz was assigned as
an independent counsel to investigate
the Mike Espy ethics question. We
know about the criminal problems with
Tysons there. Henry Cisneros, Ron
Brown, Hubbell. Of course, we all know
about the next top ranking man at the
White House right underneath the At-
torney General, Webster Hubbell, who
is now in jail.

Ickes, union representation. And of
course with Coia and all that ABC
News has done on this scandal just in
recent days, we now know why in 1994
they were worried about that.

Stephanopoulos, Nation’s Bank.
Again, this is a White House memo
that they prepared secretly inside the
White House using taxpayer resources
and in the White House counsel’s of-
fice, which they should not have been
doing. That is not appropriate use of
taxpayer funds. They have listed all of
these scandals that they wanted to
innoculate against and spin the press
about.

The Stephanopoulos-Nation’s Bank
story was of course what the press
widely described as a sweetheart, below
market mortgage for George
Stephanopoulos, the kind of deal that
ordinary Americans could not get.
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State Department passport files; an-

other Clinton administration scandal
that we are so familiar with.

Archives abuse of personal system.
This is one scandal that they have not
fully disclosed to us and that we will
find out more about.

The Legal Defense Fund, and of
course we know all about the ethical
problems that the President encoun-
tered there, soliciting funds for the
Legal Defense Fund when such solicita-
tion is, in fact, in violation of the law.

The Health Care Task Force, and of
course we know that that resulted in
litigation against Hillary Rodham
Clinton’s task force. We know that a
Federal judge ruled against the task
force, and found that it was put to-
gether in violation of the Federal Advi-
sory Committee Act and that docu-
ments were withheld from the public
and from Congress when they should
not have been.

Now there are 39 of these scandals
that White House staff—there is a
name of a White House staffer right
after each one of these, after each one
of these scandals, and they were all as-
signed and presumably are all still
working at taxpayer expense on pre-
venting the Congress from getting to
know all of the facts in these things.

White House operations, drugs,
passes, helicopters, and does that not
ring a bell for so many of us? Each of
those scandals, drugs in the White
House, the passes being given to people
without personnel clearances, the mis-
use of helicopters which resulted in the
termination of White House staff; this
is next on the White House, the Clin-
ton, list of scandals that they were
working on secretly in the White
House.

Residence renovations. This is one
that they believed was a potential
scandal, but the American people do
not yet know about it. We have just re-
ceived this document.

Presidential immunity. Well, of
course, we know that that is all having
to do with the Paula Jones litigation,
Paula Jones having sued the Governor
of Arkansas for acts in his capacity,
not as Governor but as a private indi-
vidual apparently abusing the office, at
least according to the allegations in
the complaint, and the President has
used not outside lawyers but taxpayer
supported lawyers to make sure that
his private civil litigation could be put
off until afterward. This is, by the way,
something that the courts have now re-
versed on and they have decided that
President Clinton cannot put this off,
but he has successfully put it off be-
yond the election.

White House Arkansans, Thomasson,
Nash, Rasco; need we say more?

PIC surplus.
Improper electioneering at the SBA.
Now these are all admissions by the

Clinton White House to themselves
within the White House internally of
what they were doing wrong.

GSA.
Value Partners. Now Value Partners

was, of course, the partnership that
Hillary Rodham Clinton invested in.
Rather than putting their funds in a
blind trust, they did not do so like
President Bush did, like President
Reagan did, like President Carter did;
rather, ran their own investments, and
Hillary Rodham Clinton was a partner
in Value Partners, a hedge fund which
sold short pharmaceutical stocks at a
time that the pharmaceutical stock
market was falling through the floor
because of the Hillary Rodham Clinton
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Task Force, and that was, of course,
scandal number 7 or so up here on the
list.

Presidential campaign, FEC audit.
Commodities.
Now of course we know what the

commodities is all about. That is the
miraculous fortune that Hillary
Rodham Clinton made on the invest-
ment of a mere thousand dollars in the
cattle futures market.

Gubernatorial campaigns; Lindsey,
Wright, recordkeeping. There is more
in this memo about that later on, but
of course we know that in connection
with the Whitewater criminal prosecu-
tion that Mr. Lindsey was named as an
unindicted coconspirator.

Gubernatorial campaigns dash
MGSL, and that means Morgan Guar-
anty Savings and Loan. The S&L at the
heart of the Whitewater scandal was
apparently involved in gubernatorial
campaigns, gubernatorial campaigns
back in Arkansas that the White House
counsel were working on in this admin-
istration in the White House, 1994, De-
cember, with taxpayer funds.

And then the next scandal is
Whitewater slash Morgan Guaranty
Savings and Loan.

Other: MGSL slash McDougal, right
below that.

Rose law firm, the next scandal.
HRC, and that is Hillary Rodham Clin-
ton, worked for Morgan Guarantee
S&L.

David Hale slash Susan McDougal
slash SBA, and there are different
White House staffers assigned to it.

Tucker, and of course Tucker is now
in jail, the Governor, or headed for jail.

Next: Lasater, bond deals, cocaine,
Roger Clinton.

Now this is not a Member of Congress
reading things to impugn the White
House. This is a White House memo
that says ‘‘privileged’’ on it because it
is being handled by lawyers in the
White House counsel’s office at tax-
payer expense for Bill Clinton, that
was requested by the Congress and was
not turned over to us until just now.

Lasater, bond deals, cocaine, Roger
Clinton was the next scandal that they
have tasked White House staff to work
on.

Use of loans to achieve legislative
initiatives. This is a new one that we
were not aware of, but apparently they
were working to cover that up.

Mena Airport. Well, we all know
about the drugs and deaths surround-
ing Mena airport while Bill Clinton was
Governor.

Troopers, another scandal, the so-
called Troopergate scandal, and then
there is a whole category here of scan-
dal, women. That was during the Clin-
ton campaign when President Clinton
was running in 1992, his own campaign,
not Republicans but his own campaign,
referred to as bimbo eruptions.

Now this memo goes on in the case of
each scandal to describe tasks to be
performed and strategy for dealing
with that particular scandal.

Let me give you one example.

Mr. WALKER. If the gentleman
would yield before the gentleman
moves on, could I just clarify in my
own mind what the gentleman is tell-
ing us about the memo itself? Do I un-
derstand the gentleman to say that
this is not a memo prepared by any
congressional committee or any orga-
nization here on Capitol Hill, or for
that matter, any outside organization?
Do I understand the gentleman cor-
rectly? This is a memo that was pre-
pared inside the White House?

Mr. COX of California. That is cor-
rect. This document called the White
House task list is dated December 13,
1994. It was compiled by an associate
counsel to the President, Jane
Sherburne. Her initials are on it, and it
lists all of the scandals that she antici-
pated would plague the Clinton admin-
istration and that Congress was now
likely to look into because in 1994 we
had just been elected, a Republican
Congress, not yet sworn into office, and
this memo explains how they were
going to make sure that Congress did
not——

Mr. WALKER. That is what I wanted
to clarify.

Now the date the gentleman has
given us is December 13, 1994, which is
a matter of a few weeks after Repub-
licans have taken over the Congress.
Now they had had no problem up until
then because literally all of the calls
for investigation of White House poten-
tial problems had been buried on Cap-
itol Hill.

But now, if I understand the gen-
tleman correctly, this memo is pre-
pared because they now anticipated
that they would have some problems
with the new Congress that would obvi-
ously not be friendly on some of these
issues and would actually likely inves-
tigate some of the scandals.

Is that the gentleman’s impression?
Mr. COX of California. That is ex-

actly right, and it is rather clear that
Jane Sherburne, the associate White
House counsel who personally drew up
this list of all of these scandals, was
prescient. While they were claiming no
wrongdoing, behind the scenes they
were putting together memorandums
like this, and the result in the ensuring
years has been that 5 of Bill Clinton’s
closest associates, including his Attor-
ney General and including the Gov-
ernor of Arkansas, have since been con-
victed of crimes.

Mr. WALKER. So what they were
doing here was they decided that, ‘‘OK,
we’ve got a problem. We’ve got a Con-
gress that is likely to begin looking
into things that have gone wrong in
this administration.’’

And so is the gentleman telling us
that what they did was they prepared a
list of everything that they thought
Congress might look into where they
had themselves a big problem?

Mr. COX of California. That is ex-
actly right, and furthermore, what I
have just covered is the list of the
names of these scandals, but the memo,
which is quite lengthy, goes on then to

describe the strategy for dealing with
each of these scandals so that anyone
trying to investigate would not be able
to get to the bottom of it, and I will
give you one example.

One page 4 of this memo there is a
heading, ‘‘Security,’’ by which they
mean White House security slash Liv-
ingstone issues.

Now keep in mind that this was
dated December 13, 1994. You may re-
call approximately when Craig Living-
stone came upon the national scene,
became a household name because of
that Clinton scandal. It was not in 1994,
but in 1996, 2 years later. But listen to
what this memo says back in 1994.

‘‘Review Livingstone file.’’
Now, presumably they did.
‘‘Interview Livingstone.’’
They wanted, apparently, to deal

with Livingstone problems back in
1994, all of which were covered up so
that the Congress and the American
people did not find out about them and
did not find out at all about Filegate,
literally hundreds of files on Repub-
licans who had worked in the White
House in previous administrations, FBI
files which had been collected by this
White House under Craig Livingston.

Mr. WALKER. Okay, but if I can just
follow up on the gentleman for another
moment.

So what we have here is a memo that
was prepared internally within the
White House suggesting that they
knew that they had a series of scandals
that Congress was likely to investigate
and that they had reason to be worring
about.

Is that what we believe we have in
front of us?

Mr. COX of California. That is pre-
cisely this memo. I will give you an-
other example if you wish.

Mr. WALKER. Now, if this was an in-
ternal document within the White
House, how do we now have it?

Mr. COX of California. Well, of course
we had to subpoena it, we had to
threaten to subpoena it, because we
asked for all of the Travelgate memos
to be turned over. Travelgate, which
was another Clinton White House scan-
dal, involved the firing and smearing,
through the use of the EBI, of what we
now know were honest and innocent
White House civilian career employees.

Mr. WALKER. So the only way that
this memo came to light was the fact
that Congress was subpoenaing docu-
ments. Now, was this particular memo
withheld from Congress for a while?

Mr. COX of California. For a very
long while, The request for 3,000 pages
was originally described not all that
long ago by the White House as a re-
quest for toilet paper, that this was a
trivial request, that they should not be
asked for such documents. When fi-
nally we got the first 1,000 pages of the
3,000 that we requested, we got the fa-
mous list of all of the FBI files, the
background files, the very, very con-
fidential law enforcement background
files, on people who had worked in the
White House. These had been collected
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illegally by the White House for pa-
tently political purposes.

Mr. WALKER. And so for a while the
White House was claiming that this in-
formation was in fact information that
no one had the right to know, not even
the Congress, when originally the
memo was prepared because they be-
lieved that Congress would want to
know about these matters.
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Mr. COX of California. Precisely. In
fact, while we learn about this same
process in what turns out to be pulling
teeth from the White House, trying to
get them to cooperate, because they
are claiming executive privilege about
all of these things so they do not have
to do anything cooperative with the
Congress, they first gave us 1,000 of the
3,000 pages. And in that first batch of
documents which we got under a threat
of subpoena, we found out about
Filegate and all of the FBI files that
had been collected on senior officials,
including James Baker and others well
known.

But we did not get this memo. It was
only 2 weeks ago, on August 15, that we
got this memo. This is brand new, and
almost no one, even many of our col-
leagues here in Congress, has yet had
the opportunity to read this, but it is
clearly shocking.

Mr. WALKER. So while White House
spokesmen like the press secretary,
Mr. McCurry, and even officials within
the White House, have gone to the
American public and suggested to them
that there is absolutely no substance
to any of the scandals that have been
discussed on Capitol Hill and that Con-
gress should be embarrassed to look
into these matters, they internally had
prepared a document which suggested
that all of those scandals were real,
and in fact, that they were very wor-
ried about them?

Mr. COX of California. Correct. Not
only were they very worried about
them, but what is outlined in this
memo is a specific step-by-step plan to
keep the Congress and the American
people from finding out the truth.

Mr. WALKER. So this is not just a
listing of the scandals they are worried
about, this is a listing on how they are
going to cover it up?

Mr. COX of California. Let me read
it. Here the issue is ‘‘chain of custody
re transfer of Clinton personal files.’’
Of course, we are talking about the
Whitewater files here, because these
have not been turned over. They have
not been made public. The President
has not come clean and cooperated on
this.

Here is an item on the to do list:
‘‘Determine strategy re release of
Whitewater file.’’ They wanted to de-
termine their strategy for releasing
this. This was not a decision to share
with the public, they want to find out
how they can selectively make this
available. I do not know what else a
strategy re release of files is. If you
were going to share the information

and cooperate and show there was
nothing to be concerned about, you
would simply make the information
public. But here they say they want to
determine a strategy re release of
Whitewater file.

‘‘Under search of Foster office’’, an-
other heading, they have this item to
do: legal research on the basis for re-
sisting identification and production of
all documents in Vince Foster’s office
and Bernie’s safe. So they wanted to go
and do legal research so they could
come up with a legal pretext for resist-
ing identifying and producing all docu-
ments in Vince Foster’s office and Ber-
nie’s safe. That is the kind of memo.

Mr. WALKER. So what we have here
is a memo designed to look into all of
the ways in which they could resist any
kind of investigation on Capitol Hill;
and is it possible that some of this was
also designed to resist any investiga-
tion by a special counsel?

Mr. COX of California. I do not think
there is much question about that.
Under the heading ‘‘Obstruction of jus-
tice,’’ and I have to repeat, because
otherwise this sounds——

Mr. WALKER. They believed they
had a problem with obstruction of jus-
tice?

Mr. COX of California. It is the very
heading in their own memo, ‘‘Obstruc-
tion of justice.’’ This is prepared by the
White House counsel’s office, analyzing
the legal problems of the Clinton ad-
ministration.

Mr. WALKER. So in 1994 the legal
counsel’s office believes that the White
House could have a problem with ob-
struction of justice?

Mr. COX of California. It does not say
‘‘could,’’ it says ‘‘Obstruction of jus-
tice,’’ and underneath that it says
‘‘Delay in addressing criminal refer-
rals, Department of Justice role.’’
Under that it says, ‘‘Determine usual
process.’’ Think of what it is that we
are talking about here. The delay in
addressing the criminal referrals, that
was, of course, the delay in referring
for criminal prosecution the whole
Madison Guaranty Savings and Loan
default and collapse at taxpayer ex-
pense.

The job for the White House counsel,
and remember, this is now Whitewater,
this is the real Whitewater business,
with Madison Guarantee and the
Whitewater loan transactions and so
on. We have the White House counsel,
the lawyers for the President of the
United Stats in his official capacity,
working at taxpayer expense to do this
task: Determine usual process, so we
can find out how they should have done
it, because obviously they know they
did not do it the usual way, so they had
to look up, after the fact, what would
have been the usual way to handle the
Whitewater transaction.

Mr. WALKER. Is the White House
counsel’s office even supposed to be en-
gaged in this kind of thing?

Mr. COX of California. This is one of
the reasons why I am here on the floor
this evening, because as senior associ-

ate counsel to the President myself in
the White House counsel’s office, I
could not be more familiar with the
distinguished history of the White
House counsel’s office and its authentic
purpose.

The reason that the White House
counsel has a five-decade history of
serving Presidents from both parties is
that its mission is to protect the Presi-
dent and the Presidency from illegal
acts or from any kind of trouble aris-
ing during his course or her course,
should we have a woman President one
of these days, of administration during
the course of office.

It is for the President’s official ac-
tivities, not for his tax returns, his per-
sonal tax returns, and certainly not for
his private investments, and certainly
not for the criminal investigation or
prosecution of his friends and cronies
from Arkansas or even elsewhere in the
administration. But that is exactly
what this White House counsel’s office
has been doing.

I will tell you, when I worked in the
White House counsel’s office in a pre-
vious administration, we did not look
at the President’s tax returns. That
was done at the President’s personal
expense by the President’s own private
law firm. But in this White House
counsel’s office, Vince Foster at the
time of his death was actually working
on the Whitewater partnership tax re-
turn. That is what he was doing in the
West Wing of the White House at Gov-
ernment expense.

It is a perversion and abuse of that
function, and it is obviously all the
more poignant when one reads this
very long memo called the task list of
some 39 separate scandals identified by
the Clinton administration, all being
handled in that White House counsel’s
office.

Mr. WALKER. If I understand what
the gentleman has told us, you have
the White House counsel’s office pre-
paring a memo on how to evade exam-
ination by the Congress of matters
that they believed were of serious con-
cern, and also how to evade potential
legal prosecution for some of the
things that may in fact be illegal?

Mr. COX of California. That is cor-
rect; and also how to conjure, after the
fact, legal justifications and pretext
for sins of omission and commission al-
ready occurred.

Mr. WALKER. Is there any precedent
for the White House legal counsel’s of-
fice, for the White House counsel’s of-
fice, to be the perpetrator of a memo
designed to bring about a cover-up?

Mr. COX of California. To the con-
trary. In past administrations, the role
of the White House counsel’s office has
been to facilitate the flow of informa-
tion, to make sure that when a ques-
tion arises in connection with a poten-
tial scandal or an accusation of law-
breaking, that all of the relevant infor-
mation is shared not only with law en-
forcement authorities or an independ-
ent counsel, but also with the Con-
gress.
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I can tell the Members that in the

Bush administration, in the Reagan ad-
ministration where I served, and I am
sure that this is true also of the Carter
administration, the Ford administra-
tion, that if there was a question of the
President breaking the law, if there
was a suspicion that the White House
staff might themselves to be complicit
in law-breaking, then no claim of exec-
utive privilege would be used to shield
that person from proper inquiry by the
law enforcement authorities or by Con-
gress in fulfillment of its oversight re-
sponsibilities.

To the contrary, this administration
has asserted executive privilege, up
until August 15; over this very docu-
ment. Executive privilege is not meant
to be a shield for White House staff
who are accused of criminal misdeeds.
Neither is it supposed to be a shield for
the President’s own personal invest-
ment problems. Rather, it is meant to
protect the Nation and the national se-
curity.

Mr. WALKER. Am I not correct that
a number of people who are tasked on
this memo, it is called a task list, as I
understand it, a number of the people
who are listed as having the task of
doing these jobs that are designed, as
the gentleman points out, for cover-up,
are in fact employees of the White
House counsel’s office?

Mr. COX of California. In fact, they
are all of them employees of the White
House, all of them staff of the Presi-
dent.

Mr. WALKER. Let me check with the
gentleman. For instance, I see down
here the name Kendall. Now, Ken-
dall——

Mr. COX of California. David Kendall
is an outside lawyer.

Mr. WALKER. But a number of the
people who are given these tasks in-
volved with trying to withhold infor-
mation from Congress and also to cover
up these scandals are in fact people
who are employed at the taxpayers’ ex-
pense in the White House counsel’s of-
fice, is that correct?

Mr. COX of California. That is cor-
rect, in the White House counsel’s of-
fice and in the White House staff, a
total of 15 staff members, we have
toted this up, earning an annual salary
of $1.3 million. These people who are
supposed to be doing the people’s busi-
ness, executing on legislation, policy,
and the national responsibilities of the
President of the United States, are in-
stead on scandal detail, and what a
long scandal list it is, 39 separate scan-
dals identified in this memo, and strat-
egy outlined not just for dealing with
the Congress, not just for withholding
documents, not just for coming up with
legal pretexts for doing so, but also for
dealing with the press. Because in al-
most each case, there is another item
to do on the list: Prepare press strat-
egy.

We have, for example, a heading
‘‘White House/Treasury Contacts.’’ You
remember Mr. Altman had had to re-
sign because of illegal contacts be-

tween the highest levels of the Treas-
ury Department and the White House,
tipping them off as to pending inves-
tigations, when that was a complete
violation of normal procedure. ‘‘Pre-
pare press strategy’’ is what they have
on their list here.

So when you see a representative of
the White House in the press room or a
representative of the Treasury in the
press room coming clean with the
press, what they are really doing is
executing on a strategy that was con-
cocted all the way back in December
1994 to prevent the American people
and the Congress from learning the
truth.

Mr. WALKER. I think this is one of
the more incredible documents that we
have had released. Of course, it was re-
leased under duress. The committee
literally was told for months that
these kinds of documents did not exist
in the White House, and that the com-
mittee had no right to be asking for
them, and then only under extreme cir-
cumstances did this particular memo
come to light.

Now we find out within this memo
that, in fact, there was a plan being ex-
ecuted to try to see to it that such
memos did get to Capitol Hill, and that
responsible investigators were not able
to understand anything about what
was really happening inside the White
House.

I find all of this extremely disturb-
ing. It is one thing to claim executive
privilege as a way of protecting vial
national secrets that affect the oper-
ation of the Government. It is another
thing to claim executive privilege and
try to use it to cover up the misdeeds
of people within the White House and
within the administration, misdeeds
that are so obvious that the White
House counsel’s office was able to pre-
pare a list of all the ones that they
thought that they were potentially
guilty of.

It is a horrible manifestation of the
use of executive privilege and is some-
thing which I would think in most
cases should disturb anyone who looks
at the willingness of public officials to
come clean about potential problems
within their jurisdiction.

Mr. COX of California. There is no
question that this memo gives the lie
to two claims made by the White
House. The first is that they would be
relying on outside counsel, which, of
course, they should, because these are
all scandals, private criminal problems
of the people involved. Clearly they
were still using the White House coun-
sel’s office, even after they hired their
outside counsel. They were using some
15 members of the White House staff at
an expense, an annual salary, of $1.3
million.

Second, when they said they were
coming clean, when they said they
were cooperating and trying to put all
the information out for the public to
see, what they were really doing was
just the opposite, using legal devices to
cover it up and stonewall. Unfortu-

nately, now executive privilege in this
administration is coming to be a syno-
nym for coverup.

Consider just a few items on page 10
of the task force memo. We have under
the heading ‘‘Whitewater investment’’,
‘‘Press strategy.’’ It is all sort of the
Dick Morris spin of how are we going
to pretend to be talking truthfully to
the American people on these issues
when, in fact, it is all a strategem?

Take a look here under the heading
‘‘MGSL,’’ Madison Guaranty Savings &
Loan, where they say ‘‘Rose Law Firm
work, HRC,’’ Hillary Rodham Clinton;
A, conflicts; B, enabled Madison Guar-
anty to stay open longer than it should
have. What an admission in a docu-
ment we did not get until 2 weeks ago.

Mr. WALKER. I would agree with the
gentleman, that is a fairly big item. In
other words, they knew that some of
the work done by the Rose Law Firm
enabled the Madison Guaranty Savings
& Loan to stay open longer than it
should have, and those were the kinds
of institutions, as I recall, that cost
the taxpayers millions of dollars when
these savings and loans stayed open
longer than they should have and con-
tinued to eat up the resources.

b 1745

Mr. COX of California. This is, of
course, what this memo says, but we
know what the public face has been,
the public face of the White House,
that Mrs. Clinton did no such work and
in fact had nothing to do with
Whitewater or Madison Guaranty Sav-
ings and Loan or the Rose Law Firm
involvement in this, and in fact the
collapse of Madison Guaranty had
nothing to do with her.

But in this memo, which is not pre-
pared for you or for me or for law en-
forcement but for each of the people in
the White House, the heading is, ‘‘Rose
Law Firm work, HRC, conflicts enabled
MGSL to stay open longer than it
should have.’’

This is the scandal that they are
dealing with internally and this is
their approach to each one of the 39
scandals listed in this memo: Develop a
press or spin strategy.

The White House counsel’s office
rather obviously is being misused on
the taxpayer’s tab. The American peo-
ple should not be asked to shell out for
what amounts to coverup and back-
and-fill strategy in the White House,
the protection of Presidential cronies
and the protection of people who ulti-
mately, since 1994, have found them-
selves in jail and behind bars, being
convicted of felonies.

Mr. WALKER. I found it kind of in-
teresting, something on page 11, where
it talks about Negative Associations, it
calls it. Among the people listed are
Jim Guy Tucker, David Hale, Jim
McDougal, and Dan Lasater. Three of
those names, we have become quite fa-
miliar with, as the trials have gone for-
ward in the whole Whitewater mess,
but obviously the White House had
some very big concerns about the fact
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that the President has, or the White
House has some of those negative asso-
ciations. But then behind Dan
Lasater’s name, there is a parentheses
saying ‘‘bond deals, cocaine, and Roger
Clinton.’’ I mean, we obviously have a
range of people here that the White
House counsel’s office was very worried
about, thus these negative associa-
tions.

Mr. COX of California. This, remem-
ber, is a task list. So presumably after
receiving these instructions from Jane
Sherburne on December 13, 1994, the
people who were listed here followed
through on those tasks. That means
that the White House internally, at
taxpayer expense, went out to put to-
gether information on Dan Lasater’s
bond deals, information on Dan
Lasater’s involvement with cocaine,
and that is according to this memo,
and Roger Clinton and his involvement
with the foregoing, with Dan Lasater,
bond deals and cocaine, all or some of
the above. But those documents that
were most assuredly prepared, if people
followed through on this task list, have
not been provided to this Congress nor
apparently to law enforcement authori-
ties. Each one of these 39 scandals with
its subsidiary task listed on this memo
is something that the White House, at
public expense, using the White House
lawyers and the counsel’s office, has
decided to build a wall around, to
stonewall, so that the American peo-
ple, law enforcement, and the Congress
cannot find out about it. That of
course is exactly why this memo was
prepared just after the election of the
Republican Congress, and that is why
the press has so reported.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. If the gen-
tleman would yield for a question, I
have not read these documents. But of
course both of us worked in the Reagan
White House, so we are somewhat fa-
miliar with the internal workings of
the White House and also the relation-
ship between the White House and the
Congress.

Would the gentleman answer for me,
does this memo in any way indicate
that the higher levels of management
in the White House, the White House
staff, had prior knowledge of the FBI
Filegate scandal?

Mr. COX of California. Mr. Speaker,
as a matter of fact, there is a heading
in this memo concerning security/Liv-
ingstone issues. It appears at page 4 of
the memo. Two of the tasks under that
heading are: Review Livingstone file,
and interview Livingstone. Obviously
the White House counsel’s office had a
problem with Livingstone and security
in the White House at that time.

Apparently his FBI and personnel
files, and the result of any search of his
background and the result of any
search of the issues that have all ex-
ploded onto the national scene since
then obviously must have been that
they knew in 1994 what was going on.
Yet, as we know, those FBI files on
your colleagues and mine who worked
in the Reagan and Bush White Houses,

all of those files were kept there and
not returned to the FBI. They had been
improperly obtained by some political
thugs to begin with, and they were
kept apparently with the knowledge of
at least the White House counsel’s of-
fice.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. Mr. Speaker, so
this document seems to indicate that
the senior staff of the White House
knew there was something wrong and
was looking into this situation that
would have led them to investigate
what was happening with what a year
later became, actually more than a
year later, became the FBI file scandal.
Is that correct?

Mr. COX of California. Mr. Speaker,
that is correct.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. Let us remem-
ber what happened when the informa-
tion about the Filegate scandal came
out originally. Correct me if my mem-
ory is faulty here. Did the President
not act like he did not know anything
about this? In fact, did the President
not say: Well, we are only talking
about 39 files, and it has something to
do with a military fellow that was over
here on some sort of a transfer over
here to the White House? So, in other
words, this was all an act on the part of
the senior staff of the White House,
perhaps the President.

Mr. WALKER. If I recall correctly,
they called it a kind of a bureaucratic
snafu.

Mr. COX of California. I believe my
colleague would be correct if he had
said that that was a precise quotation
from the President. He described this
as a bureaucratic snafu. This was a
couple of years after the White House
counsel’s office began investigating the
whole thing according to this very
memo and identified it as a scandal in
the making. Only, they identified it
just to themselves, not to anyone else.
Yet when it first burst upon the na-
tional scene, it was for the President to
say, this is merely a bureaucratic
snafu. Now we know that the adminis-
tration was at least criminally incom-
petent if not malevolent in abusing the
privacy of scores of honest public serv-
ants.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. The first figure
we were given by the White House was,
I think, 39 or something like that, FBI
files were involved, they in fact knew
that the number that they were giving
out at that time was incorrect. This in-
dicates that they had done a study, at
least they had red-flagged this a long
time before, and that was probably an
intentional, I would say, error, or in-
tentional misinformation, when even-
tually the figure came out of 900 FBI
files. So this is indicating that they
were looking into that matter. When
the number 39 went up to 900 FBI files,
this is all part and parcel of something
the White House had thought out a
long time before.

Mr. COX of California. What we know
specifically from this memo is that the
White House had reason to be con-
cerned about Craig Livingstone himself

in December 1994 because not only were
they worried about security issues for
which he was responsible but the task,
the specific task on this list is to inter-
view Livingstone and look at Living-
stone’s file. You would not look at Liv-
ingston’s file unless you thought he
was a problem.

Any kind of competent search about
Livingstone, since we have all read
about him in the newspaper and his un-
savory background, would obviously
have yielded the result that such a per-
son ought not to have been placed and
maintained in a position requiring pro-
fessionalism and trust. We know none-
theless the result. This political hack
was maintained in this position, this
very sensitive position in the White
House with access to FBI files on so
many Americans for 2 years.

Mr. WALKER. In fact was given
raises as I recall.

Mr. COX. of California. And described
by George Stephanopoulos as a very
able, competent person, who they loved
having in the job.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. And this man
had been involved with opposition re-
search during political campaigns prior
to this time?

Mr. COX of California. Well, of
course. And he was a bouncer.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. Mr. Speaker,
having our background in the White
House, let us examine this angle of the
story. What has happened in other
White Houses that we could actually
compare it to? Did Chuck Colson not
have something to do with an FBI file?

Mr. COX of California. He possessed
one FBI file, it was learned, and there-
fore he was convicted and sent to pris-
on, for one file.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. So Chuck
Colson, in the Nixon era, when we had
a Republican in the White House, was
found guilty of mishandling one FBI
file and went to prison. And today we
know that there were probably up to
900 FBI files in the possession of a per-
son who had been involved with opposi-
tion research for the Democratic
Party, yet this question does not seem
to be asked of the President by the
press anymore.

Mr. COX of California. The compari-
son is not apt if we just leave it at
that. The truth is that the White House
counsel’s office in its current incarna-
tion is literally a response to Water-
gate. They decided that no longer
would the lawyers for the President be
kept in a small office in the Old Execu-
tive Office Building across the street.
There were only two of them in the
Nixon administration.

We all remember John Dean’s testi-
mony about his inability to come
across with the President and convince
him of the gravity of these things. The
White House counsel’s office was then
moved right into the West Wing of the
White House. It became a significant
law firm, with very, very professional
people who have acquitted themselves
with great distinction through the
Carter administration, through the
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Ford administration, through the
Reagan administration and the Bush
administration, to keep the adminis-
tration out of trouble, to prevent
things like this from happening. But
what goes on in this White House coun-
sel’s office? They are the engines of
these misdeeds. It is the White House
counsel’s office that was coming up
with these FBI files, multiplying one
hundredfold the crime for which Mr.
Colson was convicted during Water-
gate.

Mr. WALKER. Mr. Speaker, I seem to
recall some years ago a press secretary
in a Republican administration who
got fired for having made up a quote
along the way. Now you look down
through this memo, and this memo has
a press strategy for purposely mislead-
ing the public. The level of question
that arises from this kind of task list
is pretty substantial.

Mr. COX of California. It does trouble
me that with respect to each one of
these 39 scandals, one of the items to
do, on the to-do list for the White
House counsel’s office, the legal coun-
sel of the President of the United
States, is to develop a press strategy. If
we are coming clean, if we are trying
to share with the American people all
the relevant facts so that their minds
can be put at ease that no illegality is
occurring at the highest levels of our
Government, one would wish that,
rather than a press strategy, we simply
had a procedure by which the docu-
ments were shared and made public.

Mr. Speaker, they ought to be shared
with law enforcement, shared with the
American people and with the Con-
gress. Instead, each time we have a
scandal listed here, whether it is Ickes’
union representation, Stephanopoulos,
Nations Bank, improper electioneering
at the SBA, Presidential campaign and
FEC audit, commodities. There are 39
of these.

Mr. WALKER. The use of time and
White House resources for response ef-
forts. In other words, what they are ad-
mitting to there is they have got this
problem. They are using the taxpayer
dollar. They are using the White House
itself and taxpayer dollars for essen-
tially political responses.

Mr. COX of California. That is pre-
cisely it. The press strategy seems to
be the preoccupation of the White
House counsel’s office, whereas they
are supposed to be paid by the tax-
payers and they are for the benefit of
the President to keep everything on
the level, to keep the President and the
highest levels of our executive branch
out of trouble.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. So we can as-
sume through this memo, can we not,
that basically the White House and the
upper echelons of the White House were
red-flagging every possible problem so
that they could build contingency
plans in case these things came to the
public’s attention. So when things like
the FBI scandal or perhaps even the
billing records scandal, the billing
records that miraculously appeared in

the living quarters of the first family
in the White House, that were lost for
so long, that perhaps that was not just
an accident. Perhaps actually a strat-
egy was developed on how to handle
this crisis. Maybe there is another file
someplace else that basically details
how to handle all of these problems
that are red-flagged.

Mr. COX of California. The gen-
tleman is being very circumspect and
charitable, having now received this
memo, to say ‘‘perhaps.’’ It is obvious
that the purpose of this task list is to
marshal all of the efforts of the White
House staff, led by White House law-
yers, to prevent Congress from inves-
tigating each and every one of these 39
scandals.

One of the headings in this memo is
Research Re Limitation on Legislative
Power to Investigate. What the White
House counsel’s office is doing here is
coming up with legal arguments that
will prevent the Congress from getting
to the bottom of what they have al-
ready identified as scandals.

b 1800

‘‘Research re: limitations on legisla-
tive power to investigate.’’ Under that
heading, we have DNC, DCCC, DSCC.

For those of us who are uninitiated,
the DNC is the Democratic National
Committee, the DCCC is the Demo-
cratic Congressional Campaign Com-
mittee, and the DSCC is the Demo-
cratic Senatorial Campaign Commit-
tee.

Under that they have ‘‘surrogates.’’
So they are going to be using all of
their political machinery. This is a
taxpayer paid memo, and taxpayer paid
lawyers inside the White House wrote
this memo about DCCC, DNC and
DSCC, to use them as surrogates to an-
nounce to the American people that
there are legal reasons, that the White
House counsel then went out and re-
searched and came up with, that Con-
gress cannot and should not be inves-
tigating these 39 scandals, which are
neatly itemized in this secret memo.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. Could this be
characterized again, and you looked at
these things legally, Mr. COX, and you
are a trained lawyer and I am not, I
have a journalistic background, but
would it be inaccurate to suggest that
this was a game plan for a coverup?

Mr. COX of California. As I said ear-
lier, it appears chiefly from this brand
new memo, which we have had only for
a few weeks, and also from all of the
context of the administration’s non-
response to our request for those 3,000
documents, which they referred to as a
request for toilet paper and which
eventually yielded the information
about Filegate and all the FBI files on
earlier administrative personnel that
they obtained for political purposes,
that executive privilege, which has
been their basis for refusing to turn
over these documents, is increasingly
becoming a synonym for coverup.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. I think it is
important that those people who are

reading this in the CONGRESSIONAL
RECORD or hearing this over C–SPAN
should understand that none of the in-
formation we are talking about in this
memo, or, I might add, many of the
other revelations we have discovered,
whether it is the FBI files or the bill-
ing records we were trying to find for
the Rose Law Firm in dealing with this
S&L scandal which the First Lady was
in some way attached to, these things
would not have been ever disclosed to
the public, nothing about this would
ever be known by the public, except for
the fact that the U.S. Congress
changed hands.

This memo, it appears that this
memo is a recognition that the admin-
istration recognized very early on that
the game was up in terms of hiding ev-
erything from the public. That they
could have kept all of this information,
if the Democrats would have main-
tained control of the House and the
Senate, and there was no way the pub-
lic would ever have known about this.

Which also suggests one other thing,
and this is a point I would like to make
and the public should understand: The
liberal Democrats, who controlled both
Houses of Congress and control the ex-
ecutive branch today, have a total dis-
dain for the press. They do not believe
that the press can uncover anything.
They in fact trusted that the press
would not even try to uncover any of
these things.

It was only when the House of Rep-
resentatives changed hands and we had
the power then to subpoena and ask
people under oath questions about
these types of misdeeds, that the ad-
ministration became cautious enough
and became frightened enough to try to
look at what their potential
vulnerabilities were. If we would not
have had control of the House, they
would not fear a thing from us.

Mr. WALKER. If the gentleman
would yield, I think the gentleman
from California makes an excellent
point, because actually Chairman
CLINGER, at that time a ranking minor-
ity member of the committee, at-
tempted to pursue the Travelgate scan-
dal while a minority member of the
committee, attempted to get the com-
mittee to look into the problem at that
time. He was told by the Democrats
that it would not be done. In fact, I
think, I do not remember exactly, but
I think they actually voted him down
and suggested to him that he was not
going to be able to pursue the matter.
It was not until he became chairman of
the committee that he was able to pur-
sue the matter, because specifically
that committee decided to permit the
White House to cover this matter up
and not take it up before the proper
congressional committees.

Mr. COX of California. It is at least
true that prior to the revelations, so
many of which have occurred since the
election of an opposition party to get
to the bottom of this in the White
House, that there was an attitude by
the Democrats in power in Congress at
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the time that they simply did not want
to know the answer to these questions,
because, after all, we had not seen this
document until just a few weeks ago.
But now that we have it, I think any
fair-minded person, any Democrat or
any Republican, would have to say,
this is a virtual roadmap to scandal.

If the majority party in Congress
were to put together a list of scandals
of the administration that ran to more
than a dozen, it would be called a par-
tisan exercise. Yet here we have, pre-
pared by the White House staff itself,
by President Clinton’s own staff, a se-
cret memo for their own privileged
consumption, stamped ‘‘privileged’’ on
the cover, a list of 39 scandals, with de-
tail of each, and some rather damaging
admissions about each.

Let me point our just one such that
we have not referred to in this brief
colloquy, and that is the scandal la-
beled Hubbell, and that is, of course,
Webster Hubbell, the acting Attorney
General. ‘‘Webster Hubbell’s coopera-
tion is to be monitored.’’

Now, why would we be concerned
with this? This is right before ‘‘deter-
mine press strategy.’’ Why would we be
concerned with monitoring Webster
Hubbell’s cooperation, if we were will-
ing to let the special prosecutor do his
job?

The answer is, of course, the adminis-
tration was very concerned about just
how far Webster Hubbell might go in
cooperating with that special prosecu-
tor. As we all know, Webster Hubbell
was subsequently convicted and sent to
jail.

Mr. WALKER. And right below that
is ‘‘Ickes’s union representation.’’ We
know that one of the unions and one of
the individuals that Mr. Ickes had a re-
lationship with now now somebody who
has been under congressional investiga-
tion, and where we have FBI data call-
ing him a criminal associate of the
mob, this person who Mr. Ickes was as-
sociated with. I see they were assem-
bling a binder with summary and key
documents with regard to that union
representation.

Well, since the White House has had
this direct relationship with this per-
son, Mr. Coia, who has been called by
the FBI a criminal associate of the
mob, that could be a very damaging
kind of question that is raised as a part
of the scandal memo prepared at the
White House.

In fact, ‘‘ABC News’’ has done quite
an exposé on this. It turns out the
scandal itself was under active inves-
tigation by the White House Counsel’s
Office on December 13, 1994, and it is
highlighted in this White House task
list.

Mr. WALKER. But since that time,
the President has continued to have di-
rect association with the person in-
volved, the gentleman described as a
criminal associate of the mob.

Mr. COX of California. I think at this
point it would be appropriate, because
each of our colleagues should have the
benefit of this memo in full, that I ask

unanimous consent to include the
memorandum in its entirety in the
RECORD at this point.

The SPEAKER pro tempore. Without
objection, subject to the rules of the
House.

There was no objection.
TASK LIST—DECEMBER 13, 1994

1. ISSUES

a. Foster document handling (Nemetz)
b. Travel Office (Cerf)
c. White House/Treasury contacts (revisited;

report) (JCS)
d. Obstruction of justice (DOJ handling of

criminal referrals; Jay Stephens; RTC
whistleblower reprisals)

e. Use of White House resources for response
efforts (Nolan)

f. Foster suicide (Nemetz)
g. Espy (ethics; expanded Smaltz inquiry re

Tyson’s, Hatch Act) (Mills/Nolan)
h. Cisneros
i. Brown
j. Hubbell
k. Ickes/union representation
l. Stephanopoulos/NationsBank
m. State Department—passport files
n. Archives—abuse of personnel system
o. Legal Defense Fund (Mills)
p. Health Care Task Force (Neuwirth)
q. White House operations (drugs, passes,

helicopters) (Mills/Nolan)
r. Residence renovations (Neuwirth)
s. Presidential immunity (Sloan)
t. White House Arkansans (Thomasson,

Nash, Rasco)
u. PIC surplus
v. Improper electioneering (SBA)
w. GSA (Roger Johnson)
x. Value Partners (Neuwirth)
y. Presidential campaign (FEC audit)
z. Commodities (Kendall)
aa. Gubernatorial campaigns (Lindsey,

Wright)—record keeping (Kendall)
ab. Gubernatorial campaigns)—MGSL (Ken-

dall)
ac. Whitewater/MGSL (Kendall)
ad. Other MGSL/McDougal (Kendall)
ae. Rose Law Firm (HRC work for MGSL;

Frost Case, FSLIC representation) (Ken-
dall)

af. David Hale/Susan McDougal/SBA (Ken-
dall)

ag. Tucker
ah. Lasater (bond deals; cocaine; Roger Clin-

ton)
ai. Use of loans to achieve legislative initia-

tives
aj. ADFA (political favors; Larry Nichols)
ak. Mena Airport
al. troopers
am. women (Kendall/Bennett)

2. PRELIMINARIES

a. Identify key republican objectives and
routes for achieving them—e.g.

i. sustain shadow on WJC character
ii. hype HRC threat to white men, tradi-

tional women
b. Identify guiding principles for responses—

e.g.
i. nothing to hide
ii. stick to the facts
iii. get it right the first time
iv. keep it simple
v. resist harassment
vi. govern America

c. Executive privilege research
i. OLC state of the play
ii. comments by republicans re assertion
iii. protocol
iv. strategy/principles for asserting

d. Research re entitlement of Congress to
HRC/WJC transcripts of depositions
given to Fiske

e. Research re congressional subpoena power
i. reach (HRC/WJC)

ii. precedents
iii. committee rules
iv. procedures

f. Research re limitations on legislative
power to investigate

i. legislative purpose
ii. overreaching precedents

g. Learn new Hill committee jurisdiction,
membership

h. Courtesy visits to Hill—member and staff
level (e.g., Frank, Sarbanes, leadership;
Harris, Meek, etc.)

i. Consultations
j. Offensive structure

i. FEC legal research
ii. W&C
iii. DNC/DCCC/DSCC
iv. surrogates

k. Representation of Administration officials
by private counsel

i. compensation
l. Research re proper role of OWHC with re-

spect to pre-inaugural issues with an aim
toward articulating principles for deter-
mining who should be principal spokes-
person on a particular issue and the ex-
tent to which each (private counsel/
OHWC) should participate.

3. FOSTER DOCUMENTS HANDLING

a. Independent counsel inquiry
(1) identify options with respect to issu-

ance of report—(a) precedents
(2) inquire about status and timing
(3) HRC/WJC depositions
ii. status check with counsel for individ-

uals
b. Congressional hearings

i. identify likely committees (Senate
Banking; House Banking, Gov Ops, Judi-
ciary)

(1) identify friends—key Members and staff
(2) identify leadership
(3) identify key republicans
ii. congressional visits
(1) Daschle
(2) Sarbanes & other Banking
(3) house
iii. prepare background materials
(1) assemble public record
(2) talking points and fact memoranda
iv. determine how to handle representation

of individual White House staff
(1) outside counsel
(2) attorney fees
(3) assertion of privileges

c. Press strategy
d. Surrogate role

i. Hamilton
ii. identify others

e. Offensive research
f. Issue specific tasks

i. security/Livingstone issues
(1) debrief Joel
(2) review Livingstone file
(3) consult with Randy Turk
(4) interview Livingstone
(5) fact memo
ii. inconclusiveness re Williams removal of

documents
(1) confer with Ed Dennis
(2) debrief Joel re security officer
(3) assemble public reports of document re-

moval on 7/20 and statements attributed
to White House officials

iii. chain of custody re transfer of Clinton
personal files

(1) complete interviews
(a) Carolyn Huber
(b) Linda Tripp
(c) Deborah Gorhan
(d) Bob Barnett
(e) Syvia Mathews
(2) fact memo
(3) assemble public record
(4) determine strategy re release of White

H2O Devel Corp. file
iv. search of Foster office
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(1) assemble public record
(a) including any relevant testimony at

Senate hearing on Foster suicide in July
1994

(2) fact memo
(a) obligation to seal the office imme-

diately
(b) obligation to cooperate with law en-

forcement authorities vs. protection of
privileged material

(c) basis for protecting disclosure to Con-
gress of privileged material in VF office

(3) legal research
(i) basis for resisting identification/produc-

tion of all documents in VF office and
Bernie’s safe

v. Delay in surfacing suicide note
(1) complete interviews
(a) Gergen
(b) Burton
(2) assemble material in public record
(3) fact memo
(4) legal research
(a) obligations to disclose a note to law en-

forcement authorities
(i) if not obviously a suicide note
(ii) timeliness requirements

4. FOSTER SUICIDE

a. Chris Ruddy/Center for Western Journal-
ism

b. Causes for suicide
c. Monitor Senate report; coordinate with

Hamilton
d. Develop press response

5. OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE

a. Delay in addressing criminal referrals; DOJ
role (D.C. and Paula Casey)

i. determine usual process
ii. develop chronology/fact memo with key
(1) Charles Banks
(2) Paula Casey
(3) (track Lewis correspondence released

by Leach)
iii. identify Committee interest (D’Amato;

House)
iv. assemble public record

b. RTC/Kansas City investigation (suspen-
sion of Jean Lewis, Richard Iorio etc.;
April Breslaw; pre-1993 activity)

i. develop chronology of known facts and
key documents

ii. interview Breslaw
iii. identify Committee interest (Leach;

Senate)
iv. examine last day of House hearings for

offensive help
c. Jay Stephens retention

i. track public record
ii. identify efforts to give IC civil jurisdic-

tion
iii. identify Committee interest (D’Amato;

House)
6. WHITE HOUSE/TREASURY CONTACTS

a. Senate Report
i. review/comment on Report
ii. keep in touch with Minority Report de-

velopments
iii. prepare press strategy
iv. identify surrogates

b. White House investigation of White House/
Treasury contacts (receipt of informa-
tion about RTC investigation; work prod-
uct; redactions)

i. prepare file memorandum describing use
of unredacted transcripts

ii. determine continuing Bond interest
c. Truthfulness of White House and other Ad-

ministration witnesses (referral of testi-
mony to Starr—Ickes, Stephanopoulos)

i. consult with lawyers
ii. identify areas of vulnerability
iii. research on perjury
iv. press response

d. Heads-up policy
i. surrogates
ii. uniform application

iii. Treasury status
iv. press strategy for release of Committee

report
v. work up background paper on precedents

e. Recusal policies/OGE/Executive Orders
i. press strategy for release of Committee

report
ii. background paper
iii. consult with OGE
iv. consider Executive Order or other re-

sponse to Committee
f. Contacts policy (Executive Order)

i. press strategy for release of Committee
report

ii. background paper
iii. consult with OGE
iv. consider Executive order or other re-

sponse to Committee
g. Rikki Tigert

i. determine her first likely congressional
appearance in the new congress

ii. assemble public record
iii. interview Gergen, Tigert and Klein re

communications on the subject of
recusal

(1) determine response to allegations of
‘‘pressure’’

(2) determine response to allegation that
Klein misled the committee

iv. determine press strategy/talking points
7. SMALTZ INVESTIGATION

a. Espy—ethics (Mills)
b. Beyond Espy ethics (Hatch Act, Tyson’s)

i. determine charter, scope of inquiry
ii. determine press strategy
iii. identify congressional interest
iv. assemble public record
v. fact gathering

8. WHITE HOUSE WHITEWATER RESPONSE EFFORT

a. Legal research
i. the appropriate role of White House staff

with respect to issues arising pre-inau-
guration (see above)

b. Fact development (scope of effort, etc.)
c. Determine press strategy/develop talking

points
d. Assemble public record

i. Lindsey involvement pre-1994
ii. Ickes’ Ward Room undertaking (1/94)
iii. Polesta damage control effort

9. CISNEROS

a. Gather facts
b. Establish contact with counsel
c. Determine press strategy/develop talking

points
d. Identify source of congressional interest
e. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
10. BROWN

a. Establish contact with counsel
b. Determine press strategy/develop talking

points
c. Identify source of congressional interest
d. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
11. HUBBELL

a. Monitor cooperation
b. Determine press strategy/develop talking

points
12. ICKES (UNION REPRESENTATION)

a. Monitor
b. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
13. STEPHANOPOULOS (NATIONSBANK)

a. Monitor
b. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
14. STATE DEPARTMENT (PASSPORT FILES)

a. Identify issue
b. Determine congressional interest
c. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
15. ARCHIVES (ABUSE OF PERSONNEL SYSTEM)

a. Identify issue

b. Determine congressional interest
c. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
16. SBA (IMPROPER ELECTIONEERING)

a. Identify issue
b. Determine congressional interest
c. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
17. GSA (ROGER JOHNSON)

a. Identify issue
b. Determine congressional interest
c. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
18. FEC AUDIT

a. Determine congressional interest
b. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
19. FIC SURPLUS

a. Identify issue
b. Determine congressional interest
c. Assemble binder with summary and key

documents
20. MGSL-RELATED

a. Whitewater Investment
i. assemble public record
ii. review documents, including work of ac-

countants and tax returns; Lyons reports
iii. develop fact memo and chronology
iv. press strategy

b. MGSL
i. assemble public record
ii. review W&C documents
iii. develop fact memo and chronology
iv. fact memo
(1) why MGSL failed; relationship of cam-

paign contributions to failure
(2) Rose Law Firm work (HRC 1985)
(a) conflicts
(b) enabled MGSL to stay open longer than

it should have
v. surrogate strategy

c. Rose Law Firm
i. fact memo
(1) status of conflicts inquiry
(2) Frost case
(3) Rose services to FSLIC related to

Lasater brokerage firm (HRC 2 hours in
1987, signed pleadings for VF)

(4) billing practices
ii. assemble public record
iii. determine press strategy

d. David Hale
21. OTHER PRE-INAUGURAL

a. Gubernatorial Campaigns
i. identify issues
(1) whether expenditures and loans were

properly reported under state law
(a) Lindsey role
(b) Betsey Wright
(2) role of the Bank of Cherry Valley
(3) Starr looking at 1984, 1986, 1990
ii. interview Kendall; review Kendall docu-

ments
iii. interview Snyder/Lindsey
iv. fact memo
v. press strategy

b. Negative Associations
i. Jim Guy Tucker
ii. David Hale (SBA)
iii. Jim McDougal
iv. Dan Lasater (bond deals, cocaine, Roger

Clinton)
c. Mena Airport

i. identify issue
ii. determine congressional interest
iii. assemble binder with summary and key

documents
d. ADFA

i. identify issue (political favors)
ii. determine congressional interest
iii. assemble binder with summary and key

documents
e. Use by Governor Clinton of loans to fur-

ther legislative initiatives
i. identify issue
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ii. determine congressional interests
iii. assemble binder with summary and key

documents
f. Commodities

i. determine congressional interest
ii. assemble binder with summary and key

documents
g. Paula Jones

i. assemble binder with summary and key
documents

h. Troopers
i. identify issue (job for silence, other)
ii. determine congressional interest
iii. assemble binder with summary and key

documents

Mr. COX of California. I thank the
Speaker.

The memo is quite extraordinary. It
is single-spaced, goes on for 12 pages,
and, as I said, lists 39 scandals, most of
which, now, 2 years later, are known to
the American people, but a few of
which are actually brand new. It actu-
ally details how each of these scandals
was assigned to White House staff, 15
such staffers, and according to the
press, these staffers earned a total sal-
ary of $1.3 million. This is taxpayer
money, all of which is being misspent
because that is not the appropriate
function of the White House Counsel’s
office. That is not the appropriate
function of the White House staff.
Working on these matters inside the
West Wing of the White House is itself
a scandal of the first order.

Mr. ROHRABACHER. I have not read
this memo, obviously. I appreciate the
gentleman making this available to me
and available to the other Members.
But just a quick glance shows you that
one of the issues red-flagged in this
memo is how to deal with questions
about the Vincent Foster suicide. One
wonders why, if this was just a straight
up and down suicide, which we have al-
ways, the news media and everyone
else wants to just steamroller anyone
who has any questions, serious ques-
tions about basically some of the facts
behind the suicide and the time imme-
diately thereafter. It just notes here
that they are taking, red-flagging Vin-
cent Foster, and red-flagging ‘‘obliga-
tion to seal the office immediately.’’
And, B, ‘‘to cooperate with law enforce-
ment authorities versus protection of
privileged material.’’

What we have here is basically an
outline for something concerning the
death of Vincent Foster and the pre-
vention of certain information from
getting to the public. It appears to me,
and again I would have to study this
further to relate this to other facts of
the case and see how it really plays to-
gether, but it appears to me what they
are doing here is trying to set down a
legal strategy for justifying things
they did to prevent information about
Vincent Foster, coming from Vincent
Foster’s office or about the suicide,
from coming to public attention.

Mr. COX of California. In fact, on
page 3, under the heading ‘‘Foster Doc-
ument Handling,’’ there is a sub-
heading, identifying friends for the
congressional hearings, key members
and staff, and the list of names of our

colleagues, Mr. DASCHLE, Mr. SAR-
BANES, develop a press strategy, and
then there is a heading ‘‘Offensive Re-
search.’’

This is not a memo prepared by a
White House willing to cooperate. This
is a memorandum prepared by a White
House that has carefully outlined 39
separate scandals and the strategy for
covering them up.
f

ECONOMIC GROWTH UNDER
PRESIDENT CLINTON

The SPEAKER pro tempore (Mr.
ROTH). Under a previous order of the
House, the gentlewoman from New
York [Mrs. MALONEY] is recognized for
5 minutes.

Mrs. MALONEY. Mr. Speaker, this
past Saturday, former Senator Dole,
now the Republican candidate for
President, said in his radio address,
‘‘The Congressional Joint Economic
Committee reports that last year 66
countries had economic growth rates
that surpassed ours. The President
may think that when it comes to eco-
nomic growth 67th place is good
enough, but I do not. I want America to
lead the world again in terms of eco-
nomic growth, rising incomes, and
greater job opportunities.’’

In building his bridge to the past, Mr.
Dole must have overlooked the present.
Just look at the good news about the
economy that came out in the 2 weeks
before he spoke. One week before his
speech, the Commerce Department’s
Bureau of Economic Analysis revised
the second quarter growth rate of the
gross domestic product upward to 4.8
percent. Exports and business invest-
ments showed strong upward move-
ment.

Tuesday before he spoke, the con-
ference board reported the index of
leading economic indicators, which
projects the economy’s health for the
next 6 to 9 months, reached a record
high.

Last Friday, before the Joint Eco-
nomic Committee, the Commissioner
of the Bureau of Labor Statistics re-
ported that 250,000 jobs were created
last month. This builds on the nearly
200,000 jobs we created in July, and on
the 10.5 million in the President’s first
31⁄2 years in office.

A report in the June issue of the
monthly Labor Review, which the Bu-
reau of Labor Statistics publishes,
shows that between 1993 and 1995 jobs
in relatively higher earning occupa-
tions and industries grew at almost
twice the rate as jobs in comparatively
lower earning occupations and indus-
tries.

In August, the share of women with
jobs reached a record high of 57.2 per-
cent, the highest employment record
for women in our Nation’s history.

Mr. Dole promises fiscal responsibil-
ity. However, look at the record. Be-
fore leaving office in 1993, President
Bush’s Council of Economic Advisers
left an economic report for the Presi-
dent. In it they forecasted how well the

economy would perform and what the
size of the Federal budget deficit would
be following President Bush’s economic
program.

The most optimistic forecast was for
the deficit to be $201 billion by 1996.
Under President Clinton’s leadership,
the Congressional Budget Office
projects the deficit to be $116 billion in
1996. That is $85 billion less than the
rosiest projection President Bush
promised.

After 31⁄2 years under President Clin-
ton, we have the lowest combined rates
of unemployment, inflation, and mort-
gage rates since the 1960’s, which is the
biggest tax cut of all for working
Americans and retirees on fixed in-
comes.

b 1815
Now, let us listen to the words of the

chairman of the Federal Reserve
Board, Alan Greenspan. Testifying be-
fore the Joint Economic Committee in
January 1994, Dr. Greenspan clearly
stated what he felt was the cause of the
speedup in economic growth. He said,
and I quote, ‘‘The actions taken last
year to reduce the Federal budget have
been instrumental in creating the basis
for declining inflation expectations and
easing pressures on the long-term in-
terest rates.’’

‘‘What I,’’ and again I am quoting Dr.
Greenspan, ‘‘argued at the time is that
the purpose of getting a lower budget
deficit was essentially to improve the
long-term outlook, and that if the defi-
cit reduction is credible, then the long-
term outlook gets discounted up front.
Indeed, that is precisely what is hap-
pening.’’

‘‘I,’’ and again I am quoting Dr.
Greenspan, ‘‘think a substantial part of
the improvement in economic activity
and the low rates of inflation can be di-
rectly related to a changing financial
expectation that we might finally be
coming to grips with this very severe
problem.’’

That was in January 1994. He is not
crediting shutting down the Govern-
ment and holding needed Government
services hostage to unfair budget deals
for making financial markets believe
that new and better fiscal management
was finally in place. Dr. Greenspan was
crediting the Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1993, with the, and again I quote
him, ‘‘substantial part of the improve-
ment in economic activity and the low
rates of interest.’’

I agree with Dr. Greenspan. I am
proud of the economic record President
Clinton and the Democrats have ac-
complished in the last 4 years. We still
have a great deal more to do, but we
are on the right track.

As President Clinton says, we must
build a bridge to the future. It is not a
toll bridge, because it will be a bridge
paid for by careful planning. We do not
need a bridge to the past built with
IOU’s and growing deficits that will
mortgage our future, and we do not
need to go back to slow job growth and
fewer opportunities. We need to look
forward.
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